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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Welcome to

          3  today's Finance Committee hearing. My name is David

          4  Weprin, and I chair the Committee. We don't have a

          5  quorum yet, but I expect a quorum momentarily, and

          6  we're going to take some testimony and we're going

          7  to hear from Councilman Gioia, who wants to make a

          8  statement on the Sunnyside BID.

          9                 We're joined by a number of

         10  colleagues that are here. We have Council Member

         11  Maria Baez from the Bronx. Council Member Helen

         12  Sears from Queens. Majority Whip Council Member Inez

         13  Dickens from Manhattan. Councilman Eric Gioia from

         14  Queens. Council Member Mike McMahon from Staten

         15  Island. And Deputy Majority Leader Council Member

         16  Leroy Comrie from Queens.

         17                 Today we have a number of items on

         18  our agenda. First we have to vote on three

         19  preconsidered Land Use items, which will provide

         20  property tax exemptions or property tax credits on

         21  rental housing to persons of low income.

         22                 The Noble Drew Ali Plaza, which is in

         23  Council Member Charles Barron's district in

         24  Brooklyn, contains five multiple dwellings that

         25  together provide 383 units of rental housing for
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          2  persons of low income.

          3                 Council Member Barron supports this

          4  project.

          5                 The next project is the Antlers

          6  Apartment Residence, which is in Council Member

          7  Dickens's district in Manhattan. It's a nine-story

          8  building that provides 81 units of rental housing to

          9  elderly persons of low income. Council Member

         10  Dickens supports this project, and I will let her

         11  make a statement before we hear testimony from other

         12  witnesses and Councilman Gioia.

         13                 The last Land Use item is the East

         14  Wing and West Wing Project, which is located in

         15  Speaker Christine Quinn's district. It consists of

         16  three six-story buildings, that will provide 91

         17  units of rental housing for persons of low income,

         18  including homeless or disabled persons.

         19                 It is my understanding that Speaker

         20  Quinn supports this project.

         21                 In order to keep these three projects

         22  financially viable, and provide affordable housing,

         23  HPD is requesting tax exemptions pursuant to Section

         24  577 of the Private Housing Finance Law.

         25                 After the three Land Use items, the
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          2  Council will vote on a preconsidered resolution

          3  setting the date and time to consider a local law

          4  that would create a new Business Improvement

          5  District in Queens, the Sunnyside BID. The

          6  preconsidered BID resolution will start the

          7  law-making process for the creation of the Sunnyside

          8  BID in Queens. This resolution sets June 26th as the

          9  date this Committee will consider the local law to

         10  establish the BID. On such date we will hear all

         11  those who may be affected by the establishment of

         12  the BID and then we will adjourn until the statutory

         13  30-day objection period has run before we actually

         14  vote on the local law.

         15                 The BID will be in Council Member

         16  Gioia's district, and he supports creation of that

         17  BID. And we'll hear from him shortly.

         18                 Lastly, we have another BID item on

         19  our agenda, the Court-Schermerhorn-Livingston BID in

         20  Brooklyn. Intro. 555 establishes boundaries of the

         21  Court-Schermerhorn-Livingston BID, located in

         22  Council Member Yassky's district.

         23                 On April 12th, 2007, this Committee

         24  held its initial hearing on the proposed local law

         25  after having set the date for that hearing by
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          2  Resolution 786, as required by the BID law.

          3                 At that time, all individuals who

          4  wanted to be heard on the establishment of the BID

          5  were given an opportunity to be heard. After that

          6  hearing, a 30-day objection period began, allowing

          7  anyone objecting to the BID to be given the

          8  opportunity to file an objection with the City

          9  Clerk.

         10                 Under the BID law, if 51 percent or

         11  more property owners or individuals owning at least

         12  51 percent of the assessed valuation of the property

         13  objected, we could not adopt the local law.

         14                 However, as the Department of Small

         15  Business Services will tell us, only one out of the

         16  300 property owners affected by the BID made

         17  objections to the establishment of the BID.

         18                 Furthermore, the sole objection was

         19  invalid because the property owner did not provide

         20  proof of ownership.

         21                 Thus, if the Committee can answer the

         22  following four questions in the affirmative, we can

         23  adopt the local law establishing the BID. The four

         24  questions we must be prepared to answer are:

         25                 Number one, were all notices of
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          2  hearing for all hearings required to be held

          3  published and mailed as required by law and

          4  otherwise sufficient?

          5                 Two, does all the real property

          6  within the district boundaries benefit from the

          7  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

          8  provided by the law?

          9                 Three, is all real property

         10  benefitted by the district included within the

         11  district; and

         12                 Four, is the establishment of the

         13  district in the best interest of the public?

         14                 If the Committee finds in the

         15  affirmative on these four questions, then the

         16  legislation can be adopted.

         17                 I will now call upon Council Member

         18  Eric Gioia for a statement on the Sunnyside BID.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you very

         20  much, Mr. Chair.

         21                 As the Chair knows, and as many

         22  members of the Committee know, Sunnyside is my

         23  neighborhood. I grew up in Woodside. My family has

         24  been small business owners in Woodside for a little

         25  over 100 years. My folks own a little flower shop on

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  52nd Street and Roosevelt Avenue, just outside of

          3  this district.

          4                 It has been a long time coming to see

          5  the resurgence of Sunnyside, the resurgence of

          6  Queens. What is happening there is very exciting.

          7  The waterfront is booming. People are coming in

          8  every single day, and truly Long Island City is

          9  becoming the 21st Century City, a place where we

         10  enjoy parks, where people of all income levels can

         11  live where there are schools and there are

         12  libraries. And Sunnyside, as you come up off the

         13  East River, as you go East along Queens Boulevard,

         14  Sunnyside, too, is experiencing a renaissance. And I

         15  think the BID in general is a good thing.

         16                 I have some concerns. One of my

         17  concerns is that, unlike Long Island City where we

         18  created a BID, I guess it was probably about two

         19  years ago. It all is blending together now. In

         20  Sunnyside and in Woodside, it is home to many small

         21  business owners. Many people to whom English is a

         22  second language, or third language for that matter,

         23  and what I don't want to see happen is we come back

         24  for our next public hearing and some guy comes up

         25  and says I had no idea this is happening. We say,
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          2  well, there was a community board hearing and we

          3  sent out a mailer, and they say, well, I still

          4  didn't know. And so what I would ask is that the

          5  City do extraordinary outreach here and actually

          6  make sure we're knocking on doors and make sure

          7  we're sending out notices in the languages of the

          8  neighborhood. And that we go above and beyond to

          9  make sure that people are included in this and their

         10  voices are heard. Because even when something is a

         11  good thing, like a BID, if people are left out of

         12  the process, not only does it cause hard feelings,

         13  but I think the actual product at the end of the day

         14  is not as good as it could be with an inclusive

         15  process. And I would ask that the City also keep my

         16  office, through my Chief of Staff, Zowie Epstein,

         17  informed as to how your outreach is going. Both the

         18  ordinary outreach and the extra outreach I'm asking

         19  you to do.

         20                 And I think that's it, Mr. Chairman.

         21  And I'll be voting yes on all items before us today.

         22  So, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         24  Council Member.

         25                 And we'll now hear from Council
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          2  Member Inez Dickens about the Antlers Apartment

          3  Residence.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

          5  Chairman Weprin, and the members of the City Council

          6  Committee on Finance.

          7                 I am here today to speak about the

          8  Antlers Apartments, which lies in my Council

          9  District at 2079 Frederick Douglas Boulevard in

         10  Central Harlem.

         11                 HPD is acutely aware of how important

         12  this project is to me as a lifetime resident of

         13  Central Harlem, as an elected official, and as a

         14  community advocate on behalf of Central Harlem.

         15                 The Antlers, which consists of 81

         16  apartments is strictly reserved for seniors in my

         17  district, first came to my attention as being in

         18  dire need of assistance early last year.

         19                 The HUD tax abatement, or really the

         20  City tax abatement has expired and the residents

         21  were in danger of losing their homes in a

         22  third-party transfer to another owner, due to the

         23  taxes not being paid.

         24                 Having dealt with and managed her

         25  buildings prior to being in public office, I am
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          2  somewhat familiar with the options available to the

          3  residents. I sat down with HUD officials to ask for

          4  an extension of time to allow the residents to

          5  remain in their homes and seek an equitable solution

          6  to the situation.

          7                 At the time, HPD was not excited

          8  about the prospect, but standing my ground on behalf

          9  of the project and the residents, which by the way a

         10  community, quality community-based organization, the

         11  Elks Club Post, has been strongly involved with the

         12  project. As an affordable senior building, I felt

         13  that it was very important that this building be

         14  maintained.

         15                 The Elks Club, since they had

         16  struggled with their dream of affordable senior

         17  housing, and has been involved with the management,

         18  had done a great job with the management and the

         19  maintenance of the building, but because the tax

         20  abatement had expired, taxes kicked in, and if we

         21  are really going to do something to preserve

         22  affordable housing in New York City, it is

         23  imperative that we address the issue of what happens

         24  to our subsidized units when taxes kick in.

         25                 HUD buildings are not set up that
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          2  they can survive having to pay real estate taxes. It

          3  just doesn't work. And therefore, it is incumbent

          4  upon us in the City to try to preserve our

          5  affordable subsidized housing and one part of it is,

          6  is that we can try to see what needs to be done in

          7  order for extensions of those tax abatements, such

          8  as what is occurring here.

          9                 In the case of Antlers, which

         10  illustrates some of the greater issues being faced

         11  with us in New York City, and that is of the taxes

         12  and the expiration of the abatements, then this will

         13  allow what HPD, and I give them a lot of credit,

         14  because Commissioner Shawn Donovan and the Assistant

         15  Commissioners Joe Rosenberg and Carol Clark worked

         16  very hard with me, although they were very resistant

         17  to what I proposed for the extension of time to

         18  allow me to help them to seek the financing to

         19  refinance the HUD mortgage and to therefore allow

         20  them to get further extension of the tax abatement.

         21                 They subsequently granted me that

         22  extension of time and hence this is the point that

         23  we are at right now, in that we are now able to put

         24  on the table and ask the Finance Committee to please

         25  vote in the affirmative for this extension for the
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          2  refinancing of the mortgage, the HUD mortgage and

          3  the extension of the tax abatement, which will keep

          4  the project financially viable, allow for some of

          5  the work that needs to be done for maintenance to be

          6  completed and to continue to provide affordable

          7  housing to low-income seniors.

          8                 I thank you, and I ask the Committee

          9  to please vote in the affirmative for this.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         11  Council Member, we have been joined by our two

         12  assistant Majority Leaders, both from Brooklyn,

         13  Council Member Lew Fidler and Council Member Bill

         14  DeBlasio. We will now hear from George Glatter, from

         15  the Department of Small Business Services and

         16  hopefully we'll get a quorum in the interim. So, if

         17  those members could please stay, we've got people on

         18  the way.

         19                 Mr. Glatter.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

         21  you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I hope you're

         23  good at filibusting.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Did

         25  you want me to do the Court Livingston first, or the
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          2  Sunnyside?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Whatever takes

          4  longer.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Okay.

          6                 All right, good morning, Mr.

          7  Chairman, members of the Finance Committee. I am

          8  George Glatter, Assistant Commissioner of the

          9  Department of Small Business Services.

         10                 As required by the BID law, the

         11  Court-Livingston-Schermerhorn BID Steering Committee

         12  mailed the summary of the City Council resolution to

         13  each owner of real property within the proposed

         14  district at the address shown on the latest City

         15  assessment roll, and to such other persons as are

         16  registered with the City to receive tax bills

         17  concerning real property within the district, and to

         18  the tenants of each building within the proposed

         19  district.

         20                 In addition, SBS arranged for the

         21  required publication of a copy of a summary of the

         22  resolution in the City Record. We are pleased to

         23  report on the results of the objections filed with

         24  the City Clerk against the establishment of the

         25  proposed Court-Livingston-Schermerhorn BID.
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          2                 At the conclusion of the objection

          3  period at 5:00 p.m. on May 11th, 2007, and taking

          4  into consideration any objection postmarked by that

          5  date, no valid objections were filed.

          6                 However, one invalid objection was

          7  filed. The invalid objection which represents less

          8  than one percent of the assessed valuation and less

          9  than one percent of the owners, was not counted in

         10  the objection total.

         11                 Our review concluded that this level

         12  of objections filed in terms of the number of

         13  property owners and the percentage of assessed

         14  valuation is within the accessible threshold needed

         15  to advance the bill to a favorable consideration by

         16  the full City Council.

         17                 SBS requests that the City Council,

         18  having determined that the four questions that are

         19  required to be answered in the affirmative by

         20  Section 25-407 of the New York City Administrative

         21  Code, one, that the notices appearing for all

         22  hearings required to be held is published and mailed

         23  as required by law; two, they accept as otherwise

         24  provided by law all the real property within the

         25  boundaries of the district will benefit from the
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          2  establishment of the district; and three, that all

          3  real property benefitted is included within the

          4  limits of the district; and, finally, the

          5  establishment of the district is in the public

          6  interest.

          7                 Approve the establishment of the

          8  Court-Livingston-Schermerhorn BID in Brooklyn. The

          9  Department of Small Business Services supports the

         10  establishment of the Court-Livington-Schermerhorn

         11  BID. In our judgment, the BID will improve business

         12  conditions and the quality of life in Downtown

         13  Brooklyn, making it a good place to live, work and

         14  visit, and laying the ground work for further

         15  economic development activities in Brooklyn. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Glatter.

         19                 Any questions of Mr. Glatter?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I can always

         22  depend on Council Member McMahon.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 Mr. Glatter, good to see you again. I
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          2  just was looking at the budget for this BID, has an

          3  administration cost of $210,000. That seems kind of

          4  high. Does that fit in with the parameters of these

          5  matters? And why does that come across as so high?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes,

          7  it generally does. And I actually have with me

          8  Michael Burke, who is with the Downtown Brooklyn

          9  Partnership and has actually lead the effort, if you

         10  would like him to stand up and explain just how that

         11  $210,000 breaks down?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Sure.

         13                 MR. BURKE: Good morning.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning.

         15                 MR. BURKE: Yes, the administrative

         16  budget, what we figured out for this budget was at

         17  least two full-time staff people, one as a director

         18  to direct the entire project; and, second, as an

         19  ombudsman, sort of a type of person who would field

         20  local complaints with local government agencies.

         21  Those are the two primary responsibilities, in terms

         22  of personnel that the BID would have to hire for.

         23                 The rest of the administration is

         24  general overhead, from office expenses to rent to

         25  furniture to whatever else is needed within the
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          2  office.

          3                 The administrative cost, however, of

          4  this BID is actually lower than it would be if the

          5  BID was entirely independent. Although this BID will

          6  have its own Board of Directors, the way it will be

          7  administered is that it will join with the Downtown

          8  Brooklyn Partnership. So, much of the overhead

          9  expenses will be absorbed by the Downtown Brooklyn

         10  Partnership. It will share services with both the

         11  Metrotech BID and the Fulton Mall Improvement

         12  Association, two existing BIDs. That helps bring

         13  administrative cost down. So, if this were an

         14  independent BID, you would actually see that

         15  administrative cost probably ten to 15 percent

         16  higher than it is here.

         17                 So, when you compare it to other

         18  large BIDs, the administrative cost is actually

         19  somewhat lower than it would be if it were entirely

         20  independent.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: The staff

         22  members who work for the Schermerhorn BID, that will

         23  be their only jobs, or will they share duties as

         24  well, and salaries as well?

         25                 MR. BURKE: The Steering Committee,
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          2  which will become the future board of the BID, they

          3  want staff to focus exclusively on their BID, on

          4  their BID boundaries. So, you'll have dedicated

          5  staff that will focus, most likely, on nothing but

          6  this BID geography.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And, again,

          8  Mr. Glatter, these numbers are in conformity or

          9  within a range of reasonableness, from your

         10  experience?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes,

         12  they are.

         13                 The thing that's important to

         14  understand, when you deal with small organizations,

         15  the Director isn't simply sitting in the office. The

         16  Director of the BID will an active participant, will

         17  be partly -- part of that money is really

         18  programmatic, even though we put it under

         19  administration, this program has to be delivered by

         20  that person. So, it is in line.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. Thank

         22  you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         24                 We've been joined by Council Member

         25  Vincent Gentile from Brooklyn, and our Majority
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          2  Leader, Council Member Joel Rivera, from the Bronx,

          3  and Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and

          4  Queens. I think I got everybody.

          5                 Somebody counting? Any other

          6  questions for Mr. Glatter?

          7                 Council Member Fidler. You're always

          8  good for a question or two.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I guess this

         10  would be a good time for me to say that I can't

         11  participate in this discussion because I need to

         12  abstain on the Intro. 555 for cause.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, you can say

         14  that and also --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I will say

         16  that, but I can't ask any questions because I should

         17  not be participating in the discussion.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, that's

         19  fair. I know the issue came up at the last meeting,

         20  whether a particular bank was a member of the BID;

         21  do you want to state for the record what the

         22  conclusion of that investigation was?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And for the

         24  conclusion, it is part of the BID. I have a very,

         25  very, very tiny ownership interest in it, and I am
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          2  legal counsel to it. So, I am abstaining for cause

          3  and am not participating in the discussion.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. And the

          5  name of that bank was?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Esquire Bank.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Esquire Bank.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: A wonderful

          9  bank, I might add, for anyone.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I was actually at

         11  the opening and I was very impressed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Very trial

         13  lawyer friendly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've been joined

         15  by Council Member David Yassky from Brooklyn. We're

         16  getting there.

         17                 Only one more member we need for a

         18  quorum.

         19                 Council Member Sears I think had a

         20  question or a statement about the Sunnyside BID.

         21                 Council Member Sears.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman. I always have to say that I'm a large

         24  supporter of BIDs, having worked in them when there

         25  were so few in the City of New York. I just have a
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          2  couple of questions about the Sunnyside BID, because

          3  I'm looking at the residential, government and

          4  not-for-profit, and in the residential they have an

          5  approximately 210 residential units, which I

          6  believe, and correct me if I'm wrong, it removes it

          7  from the assessment property, or maybe for a dollar

          8  a year?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER:

         10  Dollar a year, exactly.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         12                 The government has a public library

         13  in their boundaries, that removes it from an

         14  assessment area, doesn't it?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER:

         16  Completely yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         18                 And then it has a not-for-profit

         19  church within their boundaries, and that removes it

         20  from assessment?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. So, I

         23  don't know, I know that we're going to have a

         24  hearing on this, but will the property, because it's

         25  removing three very critical areas within their
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          2  boundaries from assessment, how is that going to

          3  work in their budget, calculating their budget?

          4  That's a lot. In that BID, that's a lot to be

          5  removed from the assessment area.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: But

          7  that is really standard language in pretty much most

          8  of the BIDs that we have.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand

         10  that. I understand what goes in and what doesn't.

         11  But does those three pieces of property, being

         12  removed from the calculations of adding to that

         13  budget because they will not be assessed --

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Oh,

         15  okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's my

         17  question. How does that affect the budget in terms

         18  of the fact that they would have to carry those

         19  areas that are not going to be assessed, which I

         20  think is a large area.

         21                 So, I'm just wondering how it overall

         22  affects the assessed areas and those who will be

         23  supporting those areas that are not assessed.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER:

         25  That's explained to all the property owners and the
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          2  tenants during the BID approval process, that a

          3  building that's purely residential will not be

          4  assessed and the formula is calculated leaving them

          5  out.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: When

          8  the building is a mixed-use building, and many of

          9  these are that have residential, the commercial

         10  part, the store at the bottom level will be

         11  assessed, but the upper levels where the residential

         12  units are, they will not be assessed, and all of

         13  that is calculated when we present at public forums,

         14  which there were many in this case, just how the

         15  budget was calculated and what each property will

         16  share in the overall budget.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And one other

         18  question is that since they are in the boundaries of

         19  the BID, it means that the library is going to be

         20  closed so many days of the year, the church itself,

         21  and the residential will not be adding to the

         22  vitality of the commercial area; is that going to

         23  have any type of effect?

         24                 For instance, in Jackson Heights

         25  where there isn't a BID, there's one on 82nd Street,
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          2  on 37th Avenue there's a large school, and when that

          3  school was coming into being, I really advocated

          4  that the first floor not be used for the school,

          5  that it should be mixed use because you were having

          6  very vital property, and if that spot was dead so

          7  many days of the year, it would be a detriment to

          8  the commercial area, rather than being an asset. As

          9  a result, there is that commercial base, and it is a

         10  big asset, the school isn't any less fortunate

         11  because they don't have that space. So, I'm looking

         12  at the same thing with the library, with the church

         13  and with the residential. I don't know where they

         14  are in the boundaries. That's the only reason why

         15  I'm asking. I know the area well, but I just can't

         16  place where they are.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes,

         18  I don't have the map with me. But in many BIDs,

         19  properties that are exempt from paying the

         20  assessment, either make a voluntary contribution or

         21  offer their services. So, it may well be that the

         22  BID has its meetings in the library, the church

         23  office space for the cleaning people to change their

         24  outfits, those kinds of services are very commonly

         25  provided in the BID by properties that are not
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          2  responsible to pay a BID assessment. So, we would

          3  hope that, you know, in the newer BIDs, that these

          4  similar arrangements could be made where the

          5  not-for-profits are really part of the community and

          6  are willing to participate, even though they don't

          7  have to pay a BID assessment.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right.

          9  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         11  Council member.

         12                 We have a quorum. We're going to

         13  couple all five items. That's Intro. 555, which is

         14  the Court Street Schermerhorn BID for Council Member

         15  Fidler's edification. And then the preconsidered

         16  resolution, two preconsidered resolutions regarding

         17  Sunnyside and the three preconsidered Land Use

         18  referrals.

         19                 We've also been joined by Council

         20  Member Oliver Koppell, and Council Member Gale

         21  Brewer.

         22                 Call the roll.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Weprin.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I vote aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I abstain for

         15  cause on Intro 555, and I vote aye on all others.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. I would like to just introduce to you

         23  the Curtis High School Senior Class of Government,

         24  who is here and with their teacher Mr. Joe Baroda.

         25  Say hello to them, a shout out. And I vote aye on
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          2  all.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Welcome. Enjoy

          4  the proceedings of the day.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 13 in the

         12  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         13  abstentions, all items are adopted, with the

         14  exception of Intro. 555, which is adopted by a vote

         15  of 12 in the affirmative, zero in the negative and

         16  one abstention. All items have been adopted. Council

         17  Members, please sign the Committee reports. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I'm going

         20  to keep the roll open for a half hour, and I've got

         21  calls from a number of members that are in and

         22  around the building. If we could just notify those

         23  members that the roll is going to be open for a half

         24  hour. Other than that, we're adjourned.

         25                 Okay, can we go back on the record? I
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          2  just want to note for the record that we have a

          3  statement by City of New York. I just want to note

          4  for the record we have a statement by Comptroller

          5  William C. Thompson, Jr., of the City of New York in

          6  support of Intro. 555, for the Court Livingston

          7  Schermerhorn Livingston Street Business Improvement

          8  District. And that will be incorporated in full in

          9  the record. Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Oddo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: By the

         13  recommendation of my Chair David Weprin, I vote aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         15  Gennaro.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 11:55 a.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 30th day of May 2007.
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